
Chairman 
Tom Bailer 
 

Commissioners 
David Reggiani 
John Greenwood 
Greg LoForte 
Tom McGann 
Scott Pegau 
John Baenen 
 

City Planner 
Samantha Greenwood 
 

Assistant Planner 
Shannon Joekay 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 12, 2013 @ 6:30 PM  

LIBRARY MEETING ROOM 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
2. ROLL CALL  
Chairman Tom Bailer, Commissioners David Reggiani, John Greenwood, Greg LoForte, 
Tom McGann, Scott Pegau and John Baenen 

3. APPROVAL OF REGULAR AGENDA (voice vote) 

4. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR (voice vote) 
 a. Minutes of 12-11-12 Planning Commission Regular Meeting………………………..(Pages 1-5) 
 b. Minutes of 01-08-13 Planning Commission Regular Meeting………………………..(Pages 6-9) 

5. RECORD ABSENCES 
None 

6. DISCLOSURES OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
7. CORRESPONDENCE  

8. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS 
a. Guest Speakers – None 

 b. Audience comments regarding agenda items (3 minutes per speaker) 
 c. Chairpersons and Representatives of Boards and Commissions  

9. PLANNERS REPORT………………………………………………………………………(Page 10) 

10. NEW BUSINESS 
 a. Request for Access Easement on Tract A, ATS 900 (voice vote)……………………..(Pages 11-19) 
 b. Safe Routes to School Sidewalk Project……………………………………………….(Pages 20-50) 
 c. Letter of Interest to lease of portion of the Cordova Jr./Sr. High School (voice vote)..(Pages 51-56) 

11. OLD BUSINESS 
12. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 
13. PENDING CALENDAR 
  a. February 2013 Calendar…………………………………………………….………….(Page 57) 
  b. March 2013 Calendar…………………………………………………………….…….(Page 58) 

14. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
15. COMMISSION COMMENTS 
16. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

If you have a disability that makes it difficult to attend city-sponsored functions,  
you may contact 424-6200 for assistance. 

Full Planning Commission agendas and packets are available online at www.cityofcordova.net  

http://www.cityofcordova.net/


PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING 
DECEMBER 11, 2012 @ 6:30 PM 
LIBRARY  CONFERENCE ROOM 

NOTE TIME CHANGE TO 6 PM 
MINUTES 

DRAFT 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 

B. ROLL CALL 
Chairman Tom Bailer, Commissioners David Reggiani, John Greenwood, Greg LoForte, 
Tom McGann (Absent), Scott Pegau 

and John Baenen 
 

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
M/Reggiani, S/Greenwood 

Upon voice vote, motion passed, 6-0 
D. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR 
Minutes from the November 13, 2012 Regular Meeting           (Pages 1- 10) 

M/Reggiani, S/ Greenwood 
Upon voice vote, motion passed, 6-0 
 

E. RECORD ABSENCES 
Tom McGann-called in at 6:15 PM 
 

F. DISCLOSURE OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
Pegau-All items under New Business 
 

G. CORRESPONDENCE 
None 
 

H. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS 
1) Guest Speakers 

Kate Morse from the Copper River Watershed Project will present in the next meeting. 
2) Audience comments regarding items on the agenda 
Katrina Hoffman, 108 Forestry Way-I’m aware that you are considering tonight 2 parcels that 
have been referred from the Harbor Commission back to you that are part of the Science Center’s 
request to secure land to develop our campus for our facility’s needs.  I am aware that the Harbor 
Commission recommended to you non-disposal of a portion of Lot ATS220 and the same for Lot 2, 
Block 7A.  I just want to remind you that we are not asking for 1 parcel independently of others, 
but we need to meet our whole institution’s needs.  So regarding what you refer to Council tonight, 
please consider our absolute need for access to our facility as we develop new ones in the 
community.  To that end I would ask that re: Lot 2, Block 7A that you would consider re-plotting 
that lot and selling a portion of it or recommending that Council extend a long-term lease.  We’ve 
had conversations before.  I know the Science Center has been glad to be in Cordova and that you 
are glad it is here.  So I am just asking that you keep that in mind and by that we’re talking about 
other parcels as well that we are not discussing tonight.  Those are in separate processes with the 
City Manager and eventually the City Council.  But we won’t meet our facility’s needs with just one 
of them.   

Page 1 of 58



Teresa Benson, 201 Highland Drive-Local District Ranger: I would like to voice my support for 
the Science Center.  The District Ranger before me, Dan Logan, went and introduced me to our key 
partners when I got here and the Science Center was definitely one of the key partners.  The thing 
that jumped out at me immediately when I got here was just how unique that was for the Forest 
Service.  Prior to coming here, I worked on about 8 different districts, 5 different States in the 
country.  Really this is a very unique situation here in Cordova; the Science Center I would say is 
probably what every district ranger would love to have in their community.  It’s a really big deal in 
terms of the partnership.  The federal dollars we have been getting have been declining quite 
dramatically for the last 5 years our budgets here have federally gone down approximately 30% 
and we’re seeing a decline probably over the next 5 years another 10-20%.  That is very 
concerning to me as far as the forest service presence here in Cordova.  But the main focus right 
now of the federal government is to really start looking at partnerships.  How can we get work 
down for the communities adjacent to federal land through other people?  So the partnership with 
the Science Center in Cordova is the education and the science part of it.  The education part of it is 
really key.  The Forest Service used to have funding going to the schools and partner with the 
schools and really help with engaging the students in learning about science and how they 
someday could be scientists themselves or maybe contribute to preservation of federal lands.  But 
we don’t have that money anymore.  We literally have dropped off the radar of federal dollars 
coming to Cordova.  So we really rely on the schools partnering with other entities like the Copper 
River Watershed Project, the Science Center-really critical in maintaining that presence in the 
schools.  The schools have mandates to have certain types of programs.  The programs that the 
Science Center brings are really enhancing to young people.  So that’s a key element for us.  We’re 
definitely appreciative of the scientific work that the Science Center does as well.  It saves us a lot 
of money in terms of what the Forest Service might want to do.  They (Science Center) can go out 
and get federal grants that I, as a government employee, cannot do.  Those are the key points I 
wanted to make.  I also wanted to say my bosses in Anchorage and Juneau are very supportive of 
the Science Center: they’ve reached out and partnered with a lot of our partners as well and 
expanded their abilities in Prince William Sound and the Copper River Delta immensely over the 
last few years.   
Mike Mahoney, 210 Boardwalk Way-I’m speaking on behalf of the Science Center as a board 
member.  I’m also a commercial fisherman here.  I would just like to point out a couple of things 
from my perspective that there are ways we can coexist together and meet the needs of the 
Science Center, the community and the fishing fleet.  I just ask that we all bear in mind the 
resolution in 1995 setting aside that area as a priority area dedicated to science and education.   
Robert Beedle, 609 Spruce Street-I’m also in favor of the Science Center.  But I also think that, like 
the harbor, are a victim of our success.  They’re doing great work there.  They’re offices are 
overcrowded.  They do need expansion.  Well, the Harbor is the same way.  We’re right now in the 
planning stages of a South Harbor.  I was looking at the proposal yesterday and counted the floats 
on there.  There are slips that are going to go away so we’re going to need room for expansion also 
and if we get rid of land in the Harbor (referring to Lot 2, Block 7A) it will put the Harbor in a very 
difficult position.  It’s an extreme expense to find other places (nearest) to do it.  So I’d also like 
you to consider the Harbor’s future and usability.  Like I said, we’re both a victim of our success 
and I am definitely for the Science Center but I please ask that you really look hard and long at Lot 
2, Block 7A and Shell Beach also.     
3) Chairpersons and Representatives of Boards and Commissions 

None 
 

I. PLANNERS REPORT          (Pages 11 ) 
Samantha Greenwood wanted to add that she’s working on the Ski Hill contract and that she sent 
Chapter 8 to the lawyers and should hear back shortly.  She and Moe are working on Chapter 14, 
the water line code.  Pegau asked what it means that Shoreside will close on 12/12.  Sam said it 

Page 2 of 58



meant the sale was final and she believes that process went through before he was on.  Pegau 
confirmed that. 

 

J. NEW BUSINESS 
1) Land Disposal Status  of Portion of ATS 220 (west of Lot 1, Block 1, CIP) (Pages 12 -16) 
M/Reggiani, S/LoForte  
Reggiani-This portion of ATS 220, is it currently unzoned? 
Samantha Greenwood-Yes. 
Reggiani-So I was just confused with this Parks and Rec thing and thinking it was a park in an 
open spaces category so… 
Samantha Greenwood-No it’s not, I think it just meant that it could be zoned as a park. 
Reggiani-Yes, I gathered that the use was recreational.  I just want to confirm that it wasn’t zoned.   
Samantha Greenwood-Yes. 
Greenwood- Just following up on that, I am curious why it wasn’t zone and everything around it 
was. 
Samantha Greenwood-I do not know the answer.   
Greenwood-What is the zoning around? 
Samantha Greenwood-Industrial.   
Reggiani-Are you sure for the record? 
Samantha Greenwood-It has the economic overlay but doesn’t have the underlying zone. 
Reggiani-The new break water zone, that’s not zoned also? 
Samantha Greenwood- Correct. 
LoForte- Every time we sit and meet we get different twists and turns, all extremely interesting.  
The Harbor Commission that I am also on recommended we not give away or sell this property.  
And the reason for that, I believe, the feeling that the utilization would be simply for the Science 
Center.  And yet, the Science Center has not pronounced what they would like to do with it.  In 
your write up you say for public use.  Well, you have two extremes of two canneries, almost 
meeting their and falling into that space in the summer time.  It’s a really dirty place.  Not the type 
of place I’d like to go for a picnic but nevertheless, the feeling was that it’s being utilized as a snow 
dump and could be utilized as accessible for Parks and Recreation.  The Science Center has not 
explained what they’re going to do with this property.  In the presentation, you are very vague 
about it.  That’s really not a good explanation for a piece of property.  Proposed purchase price 
$1.26 per square foot. 
Bailer- Hey Greg, you’re out of order. 
LoForte-I guess I’m getting off the subject.   
Bailer-Yes. 
McGann-My understanding, my belief, is that there hasn’t been a sufficient argument made to sell 
this property.  Bailer- Ok, John (Baenen) do you have a comment? 
Baenen- No comment. 
Bailer- I was a little surprised.  I didn’t even know this lot was there.  I talked to a few people who 
say, yea this is my favorite beach to go down to.  But from what I saw in the plan, it kind of 
mirrored what the City had in mind for it.  The motion here is to have it “Not for Sale”.  In the past 
we have had these not for sale but people can come in and again apply for them.  I hate to say that 
“not for sale” doesn’t mean “not for sale” all the time.   I will support the Harbor Commission’s 
recommendation at this time not to sell this piece of property.  Tom? 
McGann- I’m in favor of designating this lot as being available.  The Science Center proposal was 
to have it continue to be public access with improvements.  The write up from the Harbor 
suggested it be parking and fuel tanks.  I’m certainly against fuel tanks and as we have discussed in 
the past, there are other possibilities for parking.  I think that selling this lot in conjunction with 
Lot 1, Block 1 would make the whole the greater than the sum of its parts.  I didn’t see any write 
up in the master plan just concerning this parcel.   

Page 3 of 58



Bailer- I guess I’ll just add, Tom, if you saw it in the paper.  But also, Moe, the Public Works 
Director suggested we hang on to this and they use it as a snow dump area since other properties 
are being sold around there.   
McGann-Yes I did, but I think this (Science Center) is a better use of that land.  

 Reggiani-Call for the question. 
 Bailer-All those in favor?  Opposed? For the record Scott (Pegau) did not vote on this. 
 Upon voice vote, motion passed 5-1 
 

2) Land Disposal Status of a portion of Lot 2, Block 7A, Tidewater Development Park (Pages  17-19  )  
M/Reggiani, S/Greenwood 
Reggiani-I really appreciate the Harbor Commission taking the time to look at both of these 
parcels but this one in particular because it’s in the physical boundaries of the harbor specific.  
Appreciate all the planning that has gone into it and am looking forward to a clearer picture 
coming with the new harbormaster in place.  At this point, as the Harbor Commission Chairman 
explained, we need room to grow in the Harbor and making it available for sale would go contrary 
to that.   
Greenwood-Support the Harbor Commission views on this.  They are doing their job and I am not 
going to go against their will and the plan they have in place.   
LoForte-No comment. 
Baenen-No comment. 
McGann-I would just like to reiterate what was spoken before regarding City Resolution 02-95-13 
and also the comprehensive plan.  I’m in support of designating this as available.   
Bailer- Ok, thank you.  That resolution, when was that? 
Samantha Greenwood-1995. 
Bailer-When the State still owned the Harbor? 
Samantha Greenwood-I believe so. 
Bailer-That was a resolution supporting the Science Center.   
Samantha Greenwood-Yes. 
Bailer-Yes, we do a lot of resolutions in support of: Ice Worm, Sobriety. I guess I’m going to 
support the Harbor Commission as well.  It doesn’t seem right to sell a big portion of your harbor 
if you plan to expand in the future.  But this also means that if we choose to put this as not for sale 
that the Science Center and Harbor Commission couldn’t get together and maybe come up with a 
compromise.  But, as for what’s being asked now, I am going to support the Harbor’s 
recommendation.   
Upon voice vote, motion passed 5-1 
 
3) Recommendation to City Council of disposal Portion of ATS 220  (Pages 20 -23 ) 

 (Shell Beach) 
 M/Reggiani, S/Greenwood 
 Bailer-Sam, can we have a quick explanation. 
 Samantha Greenwood-We need to change it, it shouldn’t say Lot 2, Block 2 it should say 3.   
 Reggiani-Is this the portion of ATS 220? 
 Samantha Greenwood-Yes, that’s my bad. 
 Reggiani-So that’s what I would like to restate in my motion.   
 M/Reggiani, S/Greenwood 
 Bailer-And the reason we are doing this? 

Samantha Greenwood-The reason we are doing this is we have a letter of interest on this 
property.  Our land disposal criteria allow special circumstances.   So we need to address that 
letter of interest to make a recommendation to City Council.   
Bailer-So this is just our recommendation to City Council going forth? 
Samantha Greenwood-Yep. 

Page 4 of 58



Reggiani-It seems redundant since we just put it on the not available list.   
Upon voice vote, motion passed 5-1 

  
4) Recommendation to City Council of disposal a portion of Lot 2, Block 7A,  (Pages 24 - 27) 

Tidewater Development Park  
 M/Reggiani, S/Greenwood 
 Bailer-Comments? 
 Reggiani-I said it’s clean in the way it is written.  Again, it seems a little redundant. 
 Upon voice vote, motion passed 5-1 
   

    

 

K. OLD BUSINESS 
None 
 

L. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 
Samantha Greenwood asked if they should keep the meetings at 6:30 PM for the winter and the 
library as their venue.  The commission agreed on both.  Reggiani asked if Sam could access the 
internet or server for her maps.  Sam said she would be able to pull them off her hard drive if she 
needed them. 
 

M. PENDING CALENDAR 
December 2012 Calendar          (Pages 28) 
January 2013 Calendar           (Pages 29) 
 

N. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
None 
 

O. COMMISSION COMMENTS 
Pegau-I’d like to welcome John (Baenen). 
Bailer-John (Baenen) brings some expertise in water lines and construction, it’s nice.   
Greenwood-No comments. 
Reggiani-I would like to welcome John too and look forward to his expertise as we’re going through 
the different codes.  He’s got his hands into a lot of the utilities and water works and all those kind of 
things.  I’m looking forward to working with you.  Welcome. 
Baenen-Thank you.  I have a lot to learn.  Just got everything today and getting into it.  I am basing my 
voting on the Harbor Commission’s decision today. 
Bailer-Thanks for stepping forward.   
McGann-No comment.   
Bailer-It’s not that we’re just shutting the door on the Science Center.  Are there other lots that could 
fulfill their needs?  North Fill, South Fill, old City Hall.  What’s available?   
Reggiani-Indeed they can meet their requirements.   
 

 

P. ADJOURNMENT 
M/Reggiani, S/Pegau @6:30 P.M. 
 
 
 

_________________________________________________________ 
Shannon Joekay, Assistant Planner  Date 

 

Page 5 of 58



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING 
January 8, 2013 @ 6:30 PM 

LIBRARY  CONFERENCE ROOM 
MINUTES 

DRAFT 
 

1) CALL TO ORDER 
 

2) ROLL CALL 
Chairman Tom Bailer, Commissioners David Reggiani, John Greenwood, Greg LoForte, 
Tom McGann, Scott Pegau 

and John Baenen 
 

3) APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
M/Reggiani S/Greenwood 
Upon voice vote, motion passed, 7-0 

4) APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR 
N/A 

5) RECORD ABSENCES 
None 
 

6) DISCLOSURE OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
None 
 

7) CORRESPONDENCE 
None 
 

8) COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS 
1) Guest Speakers 

Kate Morse introduced herself from the Copper River Watershed Project and said she was 
there to speak about the Odiak Pond Project and that she last presented in March and would 
like to fill the new folks in. She discussed snow melt and snow storage and how it affects 
waterways and also how run off from streets and driveways affect the local waterways.  She 
believes that the Odiak Watershed is an opportunity to pilot “low cost, low maintenance” 
treatments for cleaning the snow melt and run off.  The projects she’s been working on are to 
develop a Native plant garden, to deal with invasive plants and finish grabbing samples to see 
how many pollutants are in the system.  They have money to do a pilot demonstration to use 
plants to filter storm water.  Bio-swell (picture was shown) was explained and how they can 
possibly implement that at the Hospital parking lot to get that water flowing back into the 
system.  Would also like to re-direct the snow dump at the Odiak Pond with a barrier and 
possibly move the pavilion.  There is an old railroad culvert that goes out into the pond that 
needs to be removed to let the water flow more naturally along the CRH. 

2) Audience comments regarding items on the agenda 
None 

3) Chairpersons and Representatives of Boards and Commissions 
Bailer wanted to know if Kate had been working with the State since the State plans on 
repaving and making a bike path.  Morse said that she’s mentioned that there are culverts 
there and they’re completely plugged and that’s a big source of water that is no longer being 
directed into Odiak.  She said that Kristen has talked with Robbie the most.  Baenen told Kate 
that those culverts are there but the reason they don’t want to take them out is the electrical 

Page 6 of 58



wires that are underground.  Morse then spoke about the emergency snow storage site.  She 
said it was the most attractive that Odiak had until last winter’s storm and it now has unsettled 
gravel and an idea would be to try remove some of the introduced material so the stream 
channel can reintroduce itself.  She said that she’d be able to bring money to the table to hire 
an engineer when the City is making the City-Wide Snow Handling Plan. 
 

9) PLANNERS REPORT          (Page 1 ) 
Samantha Greenwood added to define “City” and “Not Available”, the RFP for Samson electrical work 
will be on the City Council Meeting and is supposed to be done by April 1 and water/sewer will go 
simultaneously, she’s been working a lot on the Ski Hill Lease and FFA is getting taken care of.  
Shannon Joekay was hired as the Assistant Planner and she is starting Thursday.  Reggiani asked 
Sam to explain what a “Slup Lot” is.  Sam said a “Slup Lot” is the Eyak Corporation dividing their 
property to give their shareholders a 99 year lease 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

1) Land Disposal Maps 2013 recommendation to City Council   (Pages 2-16 )  
Samantha Greenwood wanted a discussion about the difference between “City” and “Not Available”.  
Bailer asked for clarification.  Pegau explained that some lots are designated as “City” and some lots 
as “Not Available”.  Reggiani wanted to know if any of the forest green that’s labeled “City” on the 
map was “Available”.  Sam said that’s what they needed to define.  An example was the North Fill and 
if they were going to keep that for boats how is that different than a City building?  McGann said it 
would be clear to call that “City” since it’s going to be developed into Harbor storage.  Reggiani asked 
them to think about going the other way with all “City” property just being “Not Available”.  McGann 
clarified that people could still come in under special circumstances to request to purchase “Not 
Available” property.  Reggiani explained that they were discussing Land Disposal Maps and that any 
other title than “Available” or “Not Available” would confuse the issue.  Greenwood asked if there 
was any way of an outsider knowing if a “Not Available” lot was being used by the City.  Sam said that 
they could submit a letter of interest.  After a lengthy discussion, a decision was made to change 
“City”, “Snow Dumps” and “Not Available” to “Not Available”.  ATS “Tidelands” will be labeled as 
“Tidelands” now so it’s clearer to potential buyers or lessees.  Another subject that came up was only 
allowing people to request to re-designate areas from “Not Available” to “Available” once a year but 
after a lengthy discussion, it was decided that the current process of allowing people to request to re-
designate at any time of the year was more beneficial to Cordova and public notice is part of the 
process.  Reggiani wanted to discuss the Ocean Dock Area.   He said it came up at their City Council 
meeting and they were talking about the CIP list, or basically the project request list that the City 
takes down to the legislature and lobbies for State money to come in.  He said that basically the CIP 
list is a ranking by priority at what our top priorities are.  They had a long discussion about a shipyard 
building and some of the members on the City Council thought that (a shipyard building) really wasn’t 
a City function to build a building and create more City infrastructure and have to staff the building 
for boat work and stuff like that.  Some thought that it should be available for a private entity to come 
build a building and do whatever.  Reggiani explained that it’s been in some people’s thoughts that 
developing a shipyard area would encourage businesses to come in (fiber glass companies, welders, 
machinists)  and set up shops down there so that when the boats get hauled out they can go to one of 
the shops.  He said, he thought the Planning and Zoning Commission would be ahead of ourselves to 
change any of these “Not Available” designations to “Available”.  He’d really like to request that the 
Harbor Commission take a look at that and if they are really thinking that a City-owned shipyard 
building isn’t the direction they’d want to go to (they’d rather see that privatized) that’s won’t happen 
if it’s marked “Not Available”.  Reggiani suggests the Harbor Commission look at the maps and make 
a recommendation as to what they believe is “Available”.  Bailer agreed that the Harbor Commission 
should make the recommendation since he has been getting conflicting opinions as to which group 
wants the area and which doesn’t.  Pegau said he thinks that the expansion and a big building was 

Page 7 of 58



incorporated into a plan, but he may be wrong.  He said that they have a really good Harbormaster 
who’s not afraid to handle anything or answer any questions and that he really enjoys working with 
him.  Pegau requested clarification about what exactly the Planning and Zoning Commission would 
like to see from the Harbor Commission: were they in fact asking the Harbor Commission to 
essentially draw out what the new configuration would look like?  Bailer said yes.  LoForte said it 
would be nice if there was more delineation between short term and junk yard storage.  Sam said 
they’re working on it.  Baenen said he definitely wanted to see business promoted in Cordova and he 
would rather see businesses and companies rather than boat storage any day; more businesses means 
more people and they’re buying houses.  He’d like to see land available down there.  LoForte 
explained some things that have been kicked around for the North Fill Development Park Area.  They 
are reviewing the best use of the area for a new ramp, electrical hookups and they want to eliminate 
the congestion by Baja Taco.  Reggiani said that Council is considering two things: to expand the fill 
and another was to have a shipyard building.  As soon as boats were hauled out they can roll into a 
building to get fixed.  The two ideas are not combined but will be looked at separately. They are 
discussing which should be the priority.  Greenwood stated that he was hoping fill was on the radar 
as we are running out of flat useable land.  It will be money well spent.  LoForte said that they are 
putting the new ramp and electrical in this summer to get rid of the congestion by Baja Taco.  Sam 
said that we may want to get the land disposal status on the North Fill changed and that she is asking 
the Harbor to come up with a plan for Lot 3A by Bayside Storage to either utilize it or dispose of it, by 
possibly making it a standard lot as it is sub-standard currently.  McGann requested clarification on 
the breakwater fill area: should be sale pending and the triangular area in front of Trident South 
should be “Not Available”.  Sam said that it was a bad GIS layer but she will continue working on it.  
Pegau recommended the designation of Shell Beach as “Not Available”.  Sam said she was not sure 
how to display that as it isn’t its own lot but she will work on ATS220 for the next meeting hopefully.  
Sam suggested that Shell Beach be designated as “Not Available” but it may be a better way to say it 
would be reviewed every time and the answer would be yes or no instead of changing the designation, 
since it’s not a platted piece of property within ATS220. 
 

   

10) OLD BUSINESS 
None 

 

11) MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 
None 

 
12) PENDING CALENDAR 

January 2013 Calendar          (Pages 17) 
February 2013 Calendar           (Pages 18) 
 

13) AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
None 

 
14) COMMISSION COMMENTS 

Sam will speak to Susan B. about microphone tricks for conference calls. 
Scott Pegau said he noticed how bad the addressing is while he was helping his wife with UPS and that 
we really need to clear up maps for health and safety responders. 
Sam said that E911 and Addressing falls hand in hand and it is on the plate for Shannon and herself.  
Shannon brings extra knowledge as she’s worked for the Police Department and knows their needs as 
well. 
 

15) ADJOURNMENT- M/David Reggiani, S-John Greenwood@ 8:20 PM 
 
 

Page 8 of 58



_________________________________________________________ 
Shannon Joekay, Assistant Planner  Date 

 
 

Page 9 of 58



Planning Department 
Planners Report 

To:       Planning Commission 
From:  Planning Department Staff 
Date:   2/12/13  
Re:         Recent Activities and updates 

 
 

• Building Permits Issued: Wilson Construction, 1020 Chase Avenue (Commercial); Diane Ujioka, 412 
Fourth Street (Residential); Steven Schmid, 412 First Street (Commercial); Jim Kallander, 302 Orca 
Inlet Drive (Residential) 

• Would you like to get the “Zoning Bulletin” and the “Legal Briefings for Buildings Inspectors” 
electronically? 

• Would you like to get the “Alaska Planning Commission Handbook-January 2012” electronically in 
PDF or would you like a hard copy? 

• Shannon is going to ArcGIS training in March and will be absent from the March P&Z Meeting. 
• Began meetings with Public Safety and the Clerk’s Office re: Addressing.   
• Removed “Draft” watermark from Draft minutes to make it easier for you all to read.  Just put DRAFT 

in the title.  Does this work for you or do you prefer a watermark? 
• Samson land trade is in the final stages, electrical ditches are being dug and conduit placed, plat is 

completed and will be recorded. 
• The ski hill contract has been approved by the state and our lawyers.  Will presented to ski club contract 

committee   
• Working with FAA on the electrical use and payment  
• Will start working with the Ski hill on the electric bills and city payments after contract is signed 
• Chapter 14 has been sent to lawyer, the hospital portion of 14 has been moved to chapter 15 and had its 

first reading on the 2/8.  Plan is to have the rest of chapter 14 and 8 on the 2/20 city council meeting for 
first reading 

• Have started to develop a plan to implement addressing.  Will start work on project this month 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 
 

 
Page 10 of 58



Memorandum 
 
To:  Planning and Zoning  
From: Planning Department Staff 
Date:  2/7/2013 
Re:  Access Easement Request through City Property 
 
PART I.  GENERAL INFORMATION: 
Requested Action: Access easement through City property 
Address & Survey: Tract A, ATS 900  
Zoning   Conservation  
 
PART II BACKGROUND: 
 
An application has been received requesting a driveway access easement through Tract A, ATS 900 
(see attached map) at the Fleming Spit Area.  The applicants have purchased Lot 3, USS 2764 
which sets directly behind Tract A.  The requested location and letter is attached along with other  
location  maps.   
 
In order for me to understand the different types of easements I did some research and have 
provided the information below.   
 
An easement is a certain right to use the real property of another without possessing it. 
 
An access easement is an easement created for the purpose of providing vehicular or pedestrian 
access to a property. 
 
A public easement is a special type of property ownership. When an easement exists on a piece 
of land, the owner of that land must permit others to use the easement for the stated purpose. If 
the easement is a public easement, the person who owns the land has to allow members of the 
public to access a defined area of his land for the reasons stated in the easement. 
 
An easement, on the other hand, is a much more limited type of property ownership. An 
easement is a non-possessory interest, which means that if a person is granted an easement, he 
does not own the land and cannot use it at will. When the easement is granted, it will stipulate a 
specific purpose that the portion of land can be used for. 

Public and private easements 

A private easement is held by private individuals or entities. A public easement grants an 
easement for a public use, for example, to allow the public an access over a parcel owned by an 
individual. 

Average driveway width is 10 to 12 feet.  

Page 11 of 58



 
 
PART III.  REVIEW OF APPLICABLE CRITERIA: 
 
In order for the access easement to be granted, Planning and Zoning Commission needs to review 
all possible locations for the easement and potential affects to the City property that the easement 
will create.  Since this is an access easement the area defined as the easement will be encumbered, 
meaning the easement cannot be blocked.   
 
The applicant has asked for an easement thirty feet wide and that will run the entire width of Tract 
A, ATS 900.   This option will provide access to the entire Lot 3. (See attachment A)  While this is a 
viable option I would like the commission to consider an additional option.  The purpose of the 
easement is to provide access to Lot 3, an easement running on the west side of Tract A, 15 feet by 
30 feet would provide adequate access to the lot and encumber less city land.  (See attachment B) 
 
Communication with the Alaska Department of Transportation (ADOT) has been occurring 
simultaneously with the applicant’s request. ADOT has requested documentation from the City 
that an easement will be granted prior to the issuance of a driveway permit.  
 
I am attaching a resolution approving the access easement, if the commission chooses may vote 
on to provide the requested document to ADOT. 
 
Special Conditions 

1. Driveway permit will be applied for and the applicant and planner will work with ADOT 
to obtain driveway permit and record easement on the State Recorder’s Page. 

2. A survey showing the easement on Tract A, ATS 900 that will be recorded with the legal 
written description as an attachment.  

 
 
PART IV.  STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Staff requests that the P&Z Commission review and discuss all access options.  Staff 
recommendation is Attachment B and the special conditions for these reasons are outlined below: 
 

1. It provides adequate access to Lot 3;  
2. It encumbers the smallest amount of square footage of City property; 
3. An attached survey document to the recorded legal description eliminates confusion and 

protects both parties 
 
  The commission may use the attachment letter to fill in the blanks in the resolution.     
 
 
PART V. SUGGESTED MOTION: 
“I move to approve the resolution 13-02 and the special conditions listed in this staff report” 
 

Page 12 of 58



Page 13 of 58



Page 14 of 58



CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

RESOLUTION 13-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
CORDOVA, ALASKA APPROVING THE REQUEST FOR AN ACCESS EASEMENT ACROSS 

TRACT A, ATS 900 AS DESCRIBED IN ATTACHMENT __. 
 
 

 WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Cordova supports and 
encourages improvements better access to private property; and  
 
 WHEREAS,  the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Cordova  has determined 
that providing an access easement across City-owned Tract A, ATS 900 is in the best interest of the 
City; and   

 
 WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Cordova has identified that 
the best route for the access easement is the route outlined in Attachment ___. 
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Planning and Zoning Commission of 
the City of Cordova hereby approves the request for an access easement across Tract A, ATS 900 as 
described in Attachment ___. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 12th DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2013 
        
        
       _________________________________ 
       Tom Bailer, Chairman 
            
           ATTEST:  
 
       _________________________________ 
       Samantha Greenwood, City Planner  
          

Page 15 of 58



Tract A

Lot 3®

Location Map

Page 16 of 58



®

Page 17 of 58



Page 18 of 58



Page 19 of 58



Memorandum 
 
To:  Planning and Zoning  
From:  Planning Department Staff 
Date:  2/7/2013 
Re:  Safe Routes to School Update and Plans 
 
PART I.  GENERAL INFORMATION: 
Requested Action: None 
Address & Survey: Sidewalk on 3rd Street and Raised Crosswalk on Lake 
 
 
PART II BACKGROUND: 
 
The Safe Routes to School program has been working diligently to identify and secure a 
grant for a safe route for children to walk to the elementary school, since 2008.  Safe Routes 
to School has held public meetings to discuss all of their projects including the development 
of the current sidewalk and raised cross walk plan.  They have also had booths at the health 
fair where information and input was requested from the public.   
 
Safe Routes to School has presented at both City Council and Planning and Zoning 
meetings.  There have been resolutions of support from City Council in 2010 and 2011.     
 
On 7/21/2010 City Council passed Resolution 07-10-42 supporting safe routes and the 
feasibility study; 
 
On 6/14/2011 Kathy Zamudio was a guest speaker at a P&Z meeting providing an update 
on the project and grant efforts; 
 
On 6/28/2011 City Council passed resolution 06-11-31 supporting the second part of the 
grant and the sidewalks on 3rd street and the elevated cross walk on Lake Avenue; 
 
On 10/17/2012 City Council directed the City Manager to accept grant administration and 
project management for the Safe Routes to School project. The City manager also answered 
questions that had been previously asked by City Council and Public Works director; 
 
On 1/28/2012 City Manager signed the intent to proceed. 
 
At this time we are working on a project agreement. Once completed the grant monies 
will be acceptable and the engineering company will be contacted to start completing the 
35% drawing that we currently have.   
 
This information is provided for discussion and a representative from Safe Routes to 
School will be present to assist in answering questions on the development of the grant.  

Page 20 of 58



The City has officially taken over the grant and the planning and public works 
department are working together to administrate the grant and project.  Our tentative 
schedule is:  
 

1. Sign off with State on project agreement. 
2. Develop and set up the administration of the grant. 
3. Work with engineering company.  

  A. complete drawings  
  B. Survey of ROW 
  C. Address Drainage agreement among all stake holders 
  D. RFP  
 
 

The Planning staff will provide updates to P&Z on progress of the project.  

Page 21 of 58



Page 22 of 58



Page 23 of 58



Page 24 of 58



Page 25 of 58



Page 26 of 58



Page 27 of 58



Page 28 of 58



Page 29 of 58



Page 30 of 58



Page 31 of 58



Page 32 of 58



Page 33 of 58



Page 34 of 58



Page 35 of 58



Page 36 of 58



Page 37 of 58



Page 38 of 58



Page 39 of 58



Page 40 of 58



Page 41 of 58



Page 42 of 58



Page 43 of 58



Page 44 of 58



Page 45 of 58



Page 46 of 58



Page 47 of 58



Page 48 of 58



Page 49 of 58



Page 50 of 58



Memorandum 
 
To:  Planning and Zoning  
From:  Planning Department Staff 
Date:  2/7/2013 
Re:  Letter of Interest, School Board recommendation – Lease space within the  
  High School Building (USS 2637) for Prince William Sound Community  
  College office and classroom use 
 
PART I.  GENERAL INFORMATION: 
Requested Action: Recommendation to City Council 
Address & Survey: 1203 square feet of classroom and office space at the High School  
   Building (USS 2637) 100 Fishermen Ave 
Zoning:  Public Lands and Institutions   
 
 
PART II BACKGROUND: 
 
The Cordova School Board has reviewed a letter of interest seeking to lease 1203 square 
feet of classroom and office space at the High School to Prince William Sound Community 
College.  The School board made a motion, discussed, and passed the  motion to 
recommend the application from Prince William Sound Community to lease space at the 
High School, at their January 9th meeting.   The City Codes specifically states that a 
resolution recommending the application is needed from the School Board.  The School 
Board will meet on February 11th and the resolution will be presented and voted upon at that 
time, the approved and passed resolution will be presented to Planning and Zoning at the 
February 12 meeting.  
 
PART III.  REVIEW OF APPLICABLE CRITERIA: 
 
As described in section 5.22.040 P&Z shall review and make a recommendation to city 
council on the disposal of the property and the method of disposal.  
 
5.22.040 - Application to lease or purchase 
 
D. The planning commission shall review the application, and recommend to the city 
council whether the city should accept the application, offer the real property interest for 
disposal by one of the competitive procedures in Section 5.22.060, or decline to dispose of 
the real property interest. 
 
Section 5.22.060 
 

Page 51 of 58



A. In approving a disposal of an interest in city real property for fair market value, the 
council shall select the method by which the city manager will conduct the disposal 
from among the following:  

 
1. Negotiate an agreement with the person who applied to lease or purchase the 

property;  
2. Invite sealed bids to lease or purchase the property;  
3. Offer the property for lease or purchase at public auction;  
4. Request sealed proposals to lease or purchase the property. 

 
 
PART IV. SUGGESTED MOTION: 
 
“I move to recommend to City Council to dispose 1203 square feet of classroom and 
office space at the High School Building (USS 2637) by procedure #_____.” 
 
 

Page 52 of 58



Page 53 of 58



SCHOOL DISTRICT PROPERTY 
 

This Agreement is made in duplicate this XX day of January 2013, by and between Cordova School 
District Whose principal place of business is 675 Second Street, Cordova, Alaska 99574 (hereinafter 
referred to as “Lessor”), and the University of Alaska, whose address of record is 3211 Providence Dr. 
Anchorage AK 99508, on behalf of the University of Alaska Prince William Sound Community College’s 
Cordova Campus (hereinafter referred to as “Lessee”). 

Premises 
Subject to the terms and conditions contained herein, Lessor leases to Lessee approximately 1,203 feet 
of classroom and office space known as "Classroom #3" and the "Multi-Purpose Room of the Library in 
the Cordova High School located at 100 Fisherman Way, Cordova, Alaska, including the reasonable use 
of common areas, including but not limited to, stairwells, hallways, restrooms, and on-site parking. 

Term 

The term of this Agreement shall be five (5) years, commencing on January XX, 2013, and terminating on 
January XX, 2018. 

Extension of Term  
The parties may extend the terms of this Lease upon mutual agreement  

Rent 
Lessee shall pay to Lessor the sum of $1,666.66 per month as rent (Rent) commencing January XX, 2013.  
Rent shall be payable by the first day of each month throughout the term of this Lease and any 
extension thereof.  Payment for any partial month’s occupancy shall be prorated, based upon a thirty 
(30) day month.  Rent may be paid in advance on a less frequent basis at the option of the Lessee. 

Other Provisions 
A. Lessor shall provide janitorial service and supplies 
B. Lessee shall provide all telephone and internet infrastructure independent of the Cordova School 

District infrastructure 
C. Lessee shall telephone and line service charges 
D. Lessee shall pay internet services and phone charges  
E. Lessor shall pay all other utility costs (consisting of heat, electricity, snow removal, sewer and 

water).  
F. Library: With the exception of the District’s use of the library for scheduled board meetings 

(typically monthly) Lessee will jointly use the library spaces in conjunction with Lessors activities 
during the scheduled school days, provided such use by the Lessee does not disrupt the Lessor’s 
use of the library.  This may include days when the library is closed due to traveling teams/visiting 
students accessing for sleeping quarters etc. 

G. Lessee must provide current liability insurance to the district in a form acceptable to the district.  
The Lessee is self-insured and will provide a Certificate of Self Insurance within 20 days to Lessor. 

Page 54 of 58



H.  General Indemnification. Lessee  shall defend, indemnify and hold the City and its authorized 
representatives, agents, officers, and employees harmless from and against any and all actions, 
suits, claims, demands, penalties, fines, judgments, liabilities, settlements, damages, or other costs 
or expenses (including, without limitation, attorney’s fees, court costs, litigation expenses, and 
consultant and expert fees) caused by lessee negligent acts or omissions, or omissions of Lessee’s 
employees, agents, students or invitees. This provision does not apply to any harm, loss, injury or 
death caused by the negligent acts or omissions of lessor or its employees, agents, students, or 
invitees. 

I. Lessee is responsible for damages to premises resulting from or arising out of the Lessee’s use of 
the premises. 

J. For security reasons, Lessee’s related visitors must check into the principal’s office upon arrival to 
the school/college during normal school day hours. 

K. Any adult classes (including GED) must be provided after the school day is completed (4:00 pm).  
The building hours will typically be 7:00 AM to 10:00 PM. 

L. Lessee must adhere to Lessor’s Board policies that specifically apply to the University’s use and 
work in the classroom and that do not violate the University’s policies and regulations. 

M. Lessor will provide Lessee with current access to school calendar of events. 
N. Lessee reserves the right to erect or affix such exterior and interior signs as may be necessary to 

inform the public of the nature and locations of Lessee’s business.  The size and character of the 
signs shall be at Lessee’s discretion and shall not unreasonably detract from the aesthetics of the 
building in which the Leased Premises is located. 

 

Notices 

All payments of rent shall be either hand-delivered or sent, postage prepaid, through United States mail 
to Lessor at the address shown below.  All notices referred to in this Agreement shall be sent certified 
mail, return receipt requested, to the parties at the addresses shown below and shall be deemed given 
three (3) days after deposit in the mail. 

LESSOR       LESSEE 

Cordova School District     University of Alaska 
675 Second Street     Prince William Sound Community College 
Cordova, AK 99574     303 Lowe St.  

Valdez AK 99686    
    

Representation as to Authority 
Each party represents that it has the authority and is authorized to enter into this Agreement. 

Entire Agreement 
This Agreement, and the exhibits set forth all of the terms, conditions, covenants and agreements of the 
parties relative to this Lease and supersede any former agreements, oral or written, which, upon the 
execution of this Lease, are terminated and of no further force and effect.  There are no terms, 
conditions, covenants or agreements, except as herein provided. 

Lessor      Lessee 

Page 55 of 58



Cordova School District    University of Alaska 

By:      By:      

Title:      Title:      

Date:      Date:     

Page 56 of 58



February 2013 
Sunday 

M
onday 

Tuesday 
W

ednesday 
Thursday 

Friday 
Saturday 

 
 

 
 

 
1   

2 G
roundhog D

ay 

3 S
uper B

ow
l 

4   

5 
6 City Council Regular 
Meeting  
Library Conference Room 
730 

7 
8 

9 

10 
11 

12 
P&Z Meeting 
Library  Conference Room 
630 

13 
14 V

alentine's D
ay 

 
15 

16 

17 
  

18 Presidents' Day 
C

ity C
losed 

  

19 
20 
City Council Regular 
Meeting  
Library Conference Room 
730 

21 
22 

23 

24 
25 

26 
27 

28 
 

 

  

Page 57 of 58



M
arch 2013 

Sunday 
M

onday 
Tuesday 

W
ednesday 

Thursday 
Friday 

Saturday 
 

 
 

 
 

1   

2 

3 
4   

5 E
lection D

ay 
6 C

ity C
ouncil R

egular 
M

eeting  
Library C

onference 
R

oom
 

730 

7 
8 

9 

10 
11 

12 
P

&
Z M

eeting 
Library C

onference 
R

oom
 

6:30P
M 

13 
H

arbor C
om

m
ission 

M
eeting 

14 
15 

16 

17 
  

18 
  

19 
20 
C

ity C
ouncil R

egular 
M

eeting  
Library C

onference 
R

oom
 

730 

21 
22 

23 

24 
25

 S
ew

ard’s D
ay 

C
ity C

losed 
26 

27 
28 

29 
  

30 

31 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 C
ord

ova School D
istrict Spring Break is M

arch 18-22, 2013. 
 

Page 58 of 58


	12_11_2012PCRegularMeetingMinutes
	1_08_2013_PCRegularMeetingMinutes
	02_12_2013 Planners Report
	AllEasement
	EasementRequestMemo
	Public and private easements

	EasementRequest
	Resolution_13-02_easement
	Easement_Map
	Easement_Map2
	Easement_AttachementA
	Easement_AttachementB

	AllSafeRoutes
	SafeRoutesMemo
	SafeRtsReslJune2010
	SafeRtsReslJune2011
	SafeRtsCityMangeMemor
	Preliminary Engineering Report
	Engineering construction documents
	01_28_2013NoticetoProceed

	All_SchoolLease
	LandDisposalHighSchoolMemo
	LandDisposalLease Continuation Request to Cordova Schools
	PWSCC Cordova High School LEASE AGREEMENT
	School District Property
	Premises
	Extension of Term
	Rent
	Other Provisions
	Representation as to Authority
	Entire Agreement



	February and March Calendars
	2_12_2013_PCRegular.pdf
	AGENDA
	8. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS
	a. Guest Speakers – None





